
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 
 

Wednesday, April 8, 2020 
7:00 PM 

 
On March 17, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-29-20 suspending certain provisions of the 
Ralph M. Brown Act in order to allow for local legislative bodies to conduct their meetings completely 
telephonically or by other electronic means. Pursuant to the Shelter-in-Place Orders issued by the San 

Mateo County Health Officer on March 16, 2020 and March 31,2020, the statewide Shelter-in-Place Order 
issued by the Governor in Executive Order N-33-20 on March 19, 2020, and the CDC’s social distancing 
guidelines which discourage large public gatherings, the Council Chamber will not be open to the public 

for the April 8, 2020 Town of Colma City Council Meeting. The purpose of these orders was to provide the 
safest environment for Council Members, staff and the public while allowing for public participation. 

 
Members of the public may view the meeting by attending, via telephone or computer,  

the Zoom Meeting listed below: 
 

Join Zoom Meeting Online: https://zoom.us/j/127732045  
Meeting ID: 127 732 045 

 
One tap mobile: 
+16699006833,,127732045# US (San Jose) 
+13462487799,,127732045# US (Houston) 
 
Dial by your location: 
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
        +1 253 215 8782 US 
        +1 301 715 8592 US 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
Meeting ID: 127 732 045 
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/acS4ed2alc  
 
Members of the public may provide written comments by email to the City Clerk at ccorley@colma.ca.gov 
before or during the meeting . Emailed comments should include the specific agenda item on which you 
are commenting, or note that your comment concerns an item that is not on the agenda. The length of 
the emailed comment should be commensurate with the three minutes customarily allowed for verbal 

comments, which is approximately 250-300 words.  
 
 
 
 

https://zoom.us/j/127732045
https://zoom.us/u/acS4ed2alc
mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov


Page 2 of 2 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. Comments 
on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the March 11, 2020 Regular Meeting. 
2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the March 18, 2020 Special Meeting. 
3. Motion to Approve the Report of Checks Paid for March 2020. 
4. Motion to Accept Informational Report on Recreation Department Programs, Activities, Events, and 

Trips for the First Quarter of 2020. 
5. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving a Service Contract with the City of South San Francisco for 

Dispatch Services. 
6. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Adopting Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) 

Project List for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Funded by SB 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 
2017 and Amend the Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Project Budget. 

7. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Accept and Consent to Deeds or 
Grants Conveying Any Interest in or Easement Upon Real Estate for Public Purposes. 

NEW BUSINESS 
8. DONATION TO SMC STRONG FUND 

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing Donation of ___________ Dollars to the Silicon 
Valley Community Foundation for the San Mateo County Strong Fund. 

9. MISSION ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT – BID PACKAGE APPROVAL 
Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving Bid Document Package and Authorizing Staff to 
Advertise Notice Inviting Bids for the Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Project 
(CIP #903). 

STUDY SESSION 
10. CALIFORNIA CARDROOM GAMING ASSOCIATION JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 

This item is for discussion only; no action will be taken at this meeting.  
REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council       
City Manager          
 

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1198 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-mail 
should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to view 
the agenda, should direct such a request to Pak Lin, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov. Please allow 
two business days for your request to be processed. 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:pak.lin@colma.ca.gov


Minutes – Regular Meeting 03.11.20 Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Town Hall Council Chamber, 1198 El Camino Real 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, March 11, 2020 

7:00 PM 
CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor John Irish Goodwin called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 
Council Present – Mayor John Irish Goodwin, Council Members Helen Fisicaro, Raquel 
Gonzalez and Joanne F. del Rosario were present. Vice Mayor Diana Colvin was absent. 
Staff Present – City Manager Brian Dossey, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Chief of Police 
Kirk Stratton, Administrative Services Director Pak Lin, Director of Public Works Brad 
Donohue, City Planner Michael Laughlin, and City Clerk Caitlin Corley were in attendance. 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
Mayor Goodwin asked if there were any changes to the agenda; none were requested. He 
asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action: Council Member Gonzalez moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded 
by Council Member Fisicaro and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

John Irish Goodwin, Mayor  
Diana Colvin  
Helen Fisicaro  
Raquel Gonzalez  
Joanne F. del Rosario  

4 0 

PRESENTATION 

• Mayor Goodwin presented a proclamation to Sergeant Dawn Marchetti, Colm’a First Female
Police Sergeant in honor of Women’s History Month.

• City Clerk Caitlin Corley introduced new Administrative Technician Abigail Dometita.

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Mayor Goodwin opened the public comment period at 7:13 p.m. Citizen Raymond Larios, 
Diane Bailey of Fossil Free Building in SV and Zeden Jones of American Institute of 
Architects of San Mateo County spoke on item #4 regarding Reach Codes. The Mayor 
closed the public comment period at 7:19 p.m. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the February 26, 2020 Regular Meeting.

Item #1



Minutes – Regular Meeting 03.11.20   Page 2 of 3 

2. Motion to Approve the Report of Checks Paid for February 2020. 
3. Motion Accepting the 2019 Annual Report on the Implementation of the General Plan, 

Including the Housing Element. 
4. Motion to Introduce the Following Ordinance by Title Only and Waive a Further Reading of 

the Ordinance: an Ordinance Amending Colma Municipal Code Subchapter 5.04 to Exceed 
the Minimum Building Code Standards for Building Electrification and EV Charging 
Infrastructure, and Set the Public Hearing Date for April 8, 2020. 

5. Motion Accepting the Fiscal Year 2019-20 Mid-Year Financial Report Through December 31, 
2019 and Authorizing a Copy to be Posted on the Town’s Website. 

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to approve the Consent Calendar items #1 through 
5; the motion was seconded by Council Member del Rosario and carried by the following 
vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 4 0    

NEW BUSINESS 
6. ADULT HOLIDAY PARTY 

City Manager Brian Dossey presented the staff report. Mayor Goodwin opened the public 
comment period at 7:36 p.m. Resident Maureen O’Connor made a comment. The Mayor 
closed the public comment period at 7:36 p.m. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member Gonzalez moved to Direct the City Manager to: (1) Plan and 
Coordinate an Adult Holiday Event in December 2020; (2) Set the Participation Fee for the 
Adult Holiday Party at $15 for Adults and $10 for Seniors and Disabled; and (3) Plan and 
Coordinate the Annual Town Picnic for September 12, 2020; the motion was seconded by 
Council Member Fisicaro and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 4 0    

 



Minutes – Regular Meeting 03.11.20   Page 3 of 3 

STUDY SESSION 
7. CALIFORNIA CARDROOM GAMING ASSOCIATION JPA 

City Manager Brian Dossey presented the staff report. Rudy Bermudez of the CCGA also 
spoke. Mayor Goodwin opened the public comment period at 8:11 p.m. and seeing no one 
come forward to speak, the Mayor closed the public comment. Council discussion followed. 

This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting. 

COUNCIL CALENDARING 
The next Regular City Council Meeting will be on Wednesday, March 25, 2020 at 7pm here 
at Town Hall.  

REPORTS 
John Goodwin 

  Seton Hospital Study Session Meeting, 3/4/20 
  Seton Hospital Emergency Meeting, 3/6/20  
 City Manager Brian Dossey gave an update on the growing COVID-19 outbreak.  

ADJOURNMENT AND CLOSE IN MEMORY 
Mayor Goodwin adjourned the meeting at 9:29 p.m. in memory of Margy Baldwin, longtime 
community member and supporter of the Colma Historical Association. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Minutes – Special Meeting 03.18.20 Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Town Hall Conference Room, 1198 El Camino Real 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, March 18, 2020 

6:00 PM 
This meeting included teleconference participation from a quorum of councilmembers in locations 
not open to the public in compliance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-25-20 issued on March 
12, 2020, allowing for deviation of teleconference rules required by the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Goodwin called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 
Council Present – Mayor John Irish Goodwin, Council Members Helen Fisicaro, Raquel 
Gonzalez and Joanne F. del Rosario were present. Vice Mayor Diana Colvin was absent. 
Staff Present – City Manager Brian Dossey, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Chief of Police 
Kirk Stratton, Administrative Services Director Pak Lin and City Clerk Caitlin Corley were in 
attendance.  

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
Mayor Goodwin asked if there were any changes to the agenda; none were requested. He 
asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action: Council Member Gonzalez moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded 
by Council Member Fisicaro and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

John Irish Goodwin, Mayor  
Diana Colvin  
Helen Fisicaro  
Raquel Gonzalez  
Joanne F. del Rosario  

4 0 

NEW BUSINESS 
1. PROCLAIMING AND RATIFYING A LOCAL EMERGENCY RELATED TO COVID-19

Christopher Diaz presented the staff report. Mayor Goodwin opened the public comment
period at 6:06 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, he closed the public
comment period. Council discussion followed.

Action: Council Member del Rosario moved to Adopt a Resolution Proclaiming a Local
Emergency Regarding Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19), and Ratifying the Proclamation of
Local Emergency by the City Manager/Director of Emergency Services; the motion was
seconded by Council Member Fisicaro and carried by the following vote:

Item #2



Minutes – Special Meeting 03.18.20   Page 2 of 3 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 4 0    

2. ADOPTION OF FY 2020-21 BUDGET – ROLOVER FROM FY 2019-20 
City Manager Brian Dossey presented the staff report. Mayor Goodwin opened the public 
comment period at 6:13 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, he closed the 
public comment period. Council discussion followed.  
 
Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Appropriating Funds and 
Adopting the Annual Budget for the Fiscal year 2020-21; the motion was seconded by 
Council Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 4 0    

3. AUTHORIZATION OF PANDEMIC PAID TIME OFF 
City Attorney Christopher Diaz noted that Council Member Gonzalez would not participate 
due to a conflict of interest; she muted herself on the teleconference line. City Manager 
Brian Dossey presented the staff report. Mayor Goodwin opened the public comment period 
at 6:33 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, he closed the public comment 
period. Council discussion followed.  
 
Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing Pandemic Paid 
Time Off to Town Employees Impacted by Operational Reductions During the COVID-19 
Outbreak; the motion was seconded by Council Member del Rosario and carried by the 
following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      



Minutes – Special Meeting 03.18.20   Page 3 of 3 

Joanne F. del Rosario      
 3 0    

 
 Council Member Gonzalez returned to the teleconference line. 
REPORTS 
 City Manager Brian Dossey gave an update on the COVID-19 situation.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  

Mayor Goodwin adjourned the meeting at 6:51 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Item #3













































Staff Report – Recreation Program Quarterly Review, January – March 2020  Page 1 of 2 

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Liz Tapia, Recreation Manager 
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: April 8, 2020 
SUBJECT: Recreation Services Department Quarterly Review, January – March 2020 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve: 

MOTION TO ACCEPT INFORMATIONAL REPORT ON RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
PROGRAMS, ACTIVITIES, EVENTS, AND TRIPS FOR THE FIRST QUARTER OF 2020 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In the first quarter of 2020, a total of 778 participants attended 55 programs.  This represents a 
decrease of 96 participants from the first quarter of 2019. Staff attributes the decrease to the 
cancellation of several programs due to COVID-19, including Colma Game Night, the St. 
Patrick’s Day Senior Luncheon and 2 sessions of Kid’s Club Afterschool Program. 

Staff estimates that 42 percent of the population had a current Colma I.D. during the first 
quarter of 2020. A four percent increase from the first quarter of 2019. The increase is 
attributed to new residents at Veteran’s Village obtaining new memberships. 

There was a total of 63 rentals, which is a decrease of 20 rentals from the first quarter of 2019. 
The decrease is attributed to voluntary and mandatory reservation cancellations due to COVID-
19.  

BACKGROUND 

Participation 

The Recreation Services Department offered programs, activities, events and trips for all age 
groups during the past quarter.  Below is a summary of participation levels by demographic:  

Item #4



Staff Report – Recreation Program Quarterly Review, January – March 2020  Page 2 of 2 

• A total of 98 adults and seniors participated in enrichment programs.  This represents a 
decrease of 17 participants from the first quarter of 2019.  Staff attributes the decrease 
due to a decline in participation in Fitness programs such as Senior Chair Yoga.     

 
• A total of 110 adults and seniors participated in trips and events. This represents a 

decrease of 53 participants from the first quarter of 2019. Staff attributes the decrease 
to the cancellation of the St. Patrick’s Day Senior Luncheon, and the Hamilton theater 
event occurring during the fourth quarter of 2019.  

 
• A total of 369 youth and teens participated in Enrichment Programs.  This represents a 

decrease of 17 participants from the first quarter of 2019.  Staff attributes the decrease 
to the cancellation of two sessions of Kid’s Club Afterschool Program due to COVID-19.  

 
• A total of 26 youth and teens participated in events and trips. This represents an 

increase of 6 participants from the first quarter of 2019.  Staff attributes this increase to 
the rise in participation of the Queens of Colma Tea Party and Open Teen Center.  

 
• A total of 175 youth, adults and seniors participated in Community Programs. This 

represents a decrease of 15 participants from the first quarter of 2019. Staff attributes 
the decrease to the cancellation of Colma Game Night due to COVID-19.  

 
The attachment contains a detailed breakdown of participation by program. 

Rental Activity 

The Colma Community Center was rented for 45 different events: 
• Resident Rentals (19 social events) 
• Resident Non-profit group (2 meetings) 
• Non-Resident Rentals (2 funeral receptions and 1 social event) 
• Non-Resident Non-profit Groups (11 programs) 
• In House Reservations (10 meetings/trainings) 

The Sterling Park Recreation Center was rented for 18 different events: 
• Sterling Park Resident Rentals (18 social events) 

 
Sustainability Impact 

Staff coordinates and implements programs and activities which are in alignment with the 
Town’s Climate Action Plan and Sustainability Policy.  For example, staff uses dishware or 
compostable plates, forks, knives, and cups for all special events and meetings.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. 2020 Recreation Services Department Quarterly Review – Participation Detail 



Recreation Services Department Quarterly Review 
January – March 2020 

Participation Detail 

Adult/Senior Enrichment Programs 
Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 

Program 
Boot Camp Fitness 14 2 Existing 
Adult Cooking Classes 16 3 Existing 
Colma Ladies Social 12 2 Existing 
Creekside Villas Activities 15 3 Existing 
Dragon Boat Paddling for Beginners Cancelled 1 Existing 
Gentle & Invigorating Yoga 14 2 Existing 
Golf Cancelled 3 Existing 
Mixtiso Dance Cancelled 2 NEW 
Yoga for Seniors Cancelled 1 Existing 
Zumba 13 2 Existing 
Zumba Toning 14 2 Existing 

Adult & Senior Trips & Events 
Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 

Program 
A Day at the Movies 6 1 Existing 
Breakfast Bingo 21 2 Existing 
Dandelion Chocolate 10 1 NEW 
Friday Films 32 3 Existing 
Pizza and Puzzles Cancelled 1 Existing 
Senior Luncheon – Lantern 18 1 Existing 
Senior Luncheon – Tacos 18 1 Existing 
Senior Luncheon – St. Patty’s Cancelled 1 Existing 
Sweet Scrabble 5 2 Existing 
Valentine’s Day Cookie Swap Cancelled 1 NEW 

Youth & Teen Enrichment Programs 
Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 

Program 
Ballet, Tap & Hip Hop 9 1 Existing 
Chamber Orchestra 1 1 Existing 
Cooking Class Cancelled 3 Existing 
Early Childhood Music Education 1 1 Existing 
Golf Cancelled 3 Existing 
Guitar Workshop 2 2 Existing 
Piano 4 1 Existing 
Kids’ Club Afterschool Program 69 6 Existing 
Kumon Math Tutoring 95 3 Existing 
Kumon Reading Tutoring 82 3 Existing 
Mixtiso Dance Cancelled 2 NEW 
Parents’ Night Out Cancelled 3 Existing 

Attachment A



 2 

Pop Vocals Ensemble  Cancelled 1 Existing 
President’s Week Day Camp 36 1 Existing 
President’s Week Day Camp Afternoon 
Care 19 1 Existing 

President’s Week Day Camp Early 
Morning Care 23 1 Existing 

Tae Kwon Do 25 3 Existing 
Teen LEYP 3 3 Existing 
Ukulele Workshop Cancelled 1 Existing 
Vibo Youth Ensemble 0 1 Existing 
 
Youth and Teen Events & Trips 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Day in the Snow Cancelled 1 Existing 
Golden State Warriors Game Cancelled 1 NEW 
Ice Cream Arts & Crafts  Cancelled 3 Existing  
Ice Skating at Union Square Cancelled 1 Existing 
Planet Granite Trip Cancelled 1 NEW 
Queens of Colma 21 1 Existing 
Teen Center Hours 5 1 Existing 
  
Community Programs 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Colma Game Night Cancelled 1 Existing 
Monterey Bay Aquarium Cancelled 1 NEW 
Project Read Learning Wheels 18 1 Existing 
Project Read Nutrition Program 16 1 Existing 
Project Read Science Club 18 1 Existing 
Golden State Warriors Game 38 1 NEW  
Super Bowl Party 85 1 Existing 
 
Note: Programs were cancelled due to insufficient participation or COVID-19. 



Staff Report – Dispatch Service Contract with SSF Page 1 of 2 

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Kirk Stratton, Chief of Police 
VIA:   Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: April 8, 2020 
SUBJECT: Police Dispatch Service Contract with the SSF Police Department 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A SERVICE CONTRACT WITH THE CITY OF SOUTH SAN 
FRANCISCO FOR DISPATCH SERVICES  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Currently the South San Francisco (SSF) Police Department provides nighttime (midnight until 
8AM) dispatch services for the Colma Police Department. In addition, they provide two one- 
hour breaks on a daily basis, and 24 hour dispatch services on New Year’s Day, Thanksgiving, 
and Christmas Day. Currently the Town pays a base fee of approximately $7,950.00 per month 
for this service, which is adjusted annually based on the current contract agreement between 
the Town of Colma and the City of South San Francisco. The current contract expires on June 
30, 2020. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The annual fiscal impact associated with approving this contract is a 2% increase each year of 
the three-year contract. The total for each fiscal year equals $97,418 for FY20/21, $99,366 for 
FY21/22 and $101,353 for FY22/23. A budget adjustment will be necessary for FY22/23 totaling 
$1,353.  

BACKGROUND 

The SSF Police Department has provided quality nighttime dispatch service for the Colma Police 
Department for decades. Their dispatchers have a good working knowledge of the streets and 
businesses in the Town of Colma, and they have a good working relationship with the members 
of the Colma Police Department. The transition to nighttime services from SSF is seamless as 
the SSF Communications Center uses the same records management system, also known as 

Item #5



 
Staff Report – Dispatch Service Contract with SSF Page 2 of 2 

RIMS. There have been no complaints from Colma Police Department personnel regarding the 
quality of dispatch service from the SSF Police Department.  

ANALYSIS 

The 2017-2020 three-year contract for nighttime dispatch services is set to expire on June 30, 
2020. A new three-year contract was presented to the Colma Police Department in April, 2020 
for review and authorization. The agreement between the City of South San Francisco and the 
Town of Colma is for continued dispatch services provided by the SSF Communications Center, 
daily from midnight to 8am, to include E911 and business communication telephone lines. The 
invoice procedure will be quarterly which is the current monthly billing system.  

Council Adopted Values 
 
The resolution to approve the proposed contract is the responsible thing to do as it ensures the 
Town is able to provide emergency services from midnight to 8am daily through a service 
contract.  
 

ALTERNATIVES 

The following alternative course of action is available to the City Council: 

1. Do not approve the contract for dispatch services with SSF Police Department, and 
provide further direction to staff. This alternative is not recommended as Colma PD 
would not be able to provide dispatching services from midnight to 8 am daily, due to 
staffing levels. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the three year contract for dispatch services 
with the SSF Police Department and direct the Colma City Manager to move forward and sign 
the contract.  

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution 

B. Copy of SSF Police Department Dispatch Services Contract. 

 



Res. 2020-XX, SSF Dispatch Agreement (Adopted ___________) Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-XX 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A SERVICE CONTRACT WITH THE 
CITY OF SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO FOR DISPATCH SERVICES  

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) The Town of Colma has contracted with the City of South San Francisco for police dispatch 
services for decades. 

(b) The City of South San Francisco’s Police Department currently provides dispatch services for 
the Town of Colma’s Police Department from midnight to 8 am and during two one-hour breaks 
daily, as well as on certain holidays, emergency situations, and other times the parties deem 
appropriate.  The Town of Colma’s current contract with the City of South San Francisco for 
dispatch services is set to expire on June 30, 2020. 

(c) The parties now desire to enter into a new agreement for the provision of dispatch services 
for an additional three-year term. 

2. Finding.

(a) The City Council of the Town of Colma finds that the contract with the City of South San 
Francisco for dispatch services is exempt from competitive bidding under Colma Municipal Code 
section 1.06.180 because it is a contract for governmental services provided by a governmental 
agency.  

3. Order

(a) The contract between the Town of Colma and City of South San Francisco for dispatch 
services for the period from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023, a copy of which is on file with the 
City Clerk, is approved by the City Council of the Town of Colma.  

(b) The City Manager is authorized to execute said contract on behalf of the Town of Colma, 
with such technical amendments as may be deemed appropriate by the City Attorney. 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

Attachment A



Res. 2020-XX, SSF Dispatch Agreement (Adopted ___________) Page 2 of 2 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020-XX was duly adopted at a regular meeting of said 
City Council held on April 8, 2020 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro       
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      

Voting Tally      
 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      John Irish Goodwin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 



Attachment B





















Staff Report - RMRA Project List and 2020-21 Budget Adjustment  Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM: Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works, CSG Consultants  

Abdulkader Hashem, Associate Engineer, CSG Consultants 
VIA:   Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: April 08, 2020 
SUBJECT: Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) Project List 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING ROAD MAINTENANCE AND REHABILITATION ACCOUNT 
(RMRA) PROJECT LIST FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 FUNDED BY SB 1: THE ROAD 
REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017 AND AMEND THE MISSION ROAD 
BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENT PROJECT BUDGET  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Requirements have been imposed by the State as part of the State Gas Taxes that began 
collection on November 1, 2017. In order to receive an allocation of the Gas Tax revenue, 
estimated as part of the adopted Budget to be $28,500 for Fiscal Year 2020-21, a list of projects 
proposed to be funded with SB 1 funds must be adopted.  Also, the Town is required to 
demonstrate that the revenue and expenditures are included in the Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget. 
The funds are proposed to be allocated to the Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements 
project to be constructed in 2020. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The adoption of the RMRA project list and accompanied resolution will increase the Mission Road 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement (CIP Project # 903) budget from $1,608,500 to $1,662,000 
and transfer FY 2019-20 SB 1 allocations of $25,000 and FY 2020-21 SB 1 fund of $28,500 into 
the Street Capital Fund (Fund # 32).  

BACKGROUND 

On April 28, 2017, the Governor Signed Senate Bill (SB) 1, which is known as the Road Repair 
and Accountability Act of 2017.  This legislation increased the per gallon fuel excise taxes ($0.12 
per gallon), as well as increased diesel fuel sales taxes and vehicle registration fees.  The use of 

Item #6



Staff Report - RMRA Project List and 2020-21 Budget Adjustment  Page 2 of 3 

the funds also comes with additional reporting requirements and a focus on using the new funds 
for basic road maintenance, rehabilitation, and critical safety projects on both the State Highway 
and local streets and roads system. 
 
On November 1, 2017, the State Controller (Controller) began to deposit various portions of this 
new funding into the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA).  Although the exact 
amount has not been determined by the Controller for Fiscal Year 2020-21, the Town of Colma’s 
RMRA allocation will include an estimated $28,500 funds that will be expensed per SB 1 
Accountability and Transparency Guidelines, adopted on March 21, 2018.   
  
ANALYSIS 

The Town of Colma must submit to the California Transportation Commission (CTC) a list of 
projects to be funded with RMRA funds.  To simplify the reporting and administration of the RMRA 
funds, the proposed Project List consists of adding the RMRA funds to the Mission Road Bicycle 
and Pedestrian Improvements Project (CIP Project #903) that will be constructed in 2020. 
 
The total estimated project cost for the Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements 
Project to complete the design, construction, and project management is currently estimated at 
$1,662,000 (Inclusive of this year’s RMRA allocation).  The project funding is supported by a 
variety of sources as shown below:  
 

No. Source of Fund 
 

Amount 

1 Total Livable Communities (TLC) program - One Bay Area Grant 2 
(OBAG 2) 

$525,000 

2 Federal Local Streets and Roads (LSR) program One Bay Area 
Grant 2 (OBAG 2) 

$100,000 

3 Safe Routes to School-Green Streets Infrastructure 
 

$200,000 

4 Local Measure A 
 

$160,000 

5 RMRA (SB 1) fund FY 2017-18 
 

$8,500 

6 RMRA (SB 1) fund FY 2018-19 
 

$25,000 

7 
 

RMRA (SB 1) fund FY 2019-20 $25,000 
 

8 RMRA (SB1) fund FY 2020-21 $28,500* 

9 Colma Fund #32 (General CIP- General Funds allocated to Capital 
Projects) 

$590,000 

TOTAL 
 

$1,662,000 

. * 2020-21 Estimated RMRA allocation 
 
The 2019-20 RMRA Gas Tax allocation will be included in the upcoming 2020-21 Fiscal Year 
Budget.   If approved by City Council, the adoption of the project list will appropriate $28,500 as 



Staff Report - RMRA Project List and 2020-21 Budget Adjustment  Page 3 of 3 

an additional appropriation for the Mission Road Improvements (CIP Project #903). If approved, 
Town Staff by way of a Resolution, will be required to provide the annual RMRA project list and 
expenditure reporting to the CTC.   
    
REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED ACTION 

The recommended actions are a requirement of the State program implementing the tracking of 
expenditures for the Gas Tax increase adopted by the State Legislature.  If the action is not taken 
prior to May 1, 2020 the Town would potentially lose or not receive the estimated RMRA Gas Tax 
Funds for Fiscal Year 2020-21.  

COUNCIL ADOPTED VALUES 

The City Council by commissioning the RMRA funds to be used for the Mission Road Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Improvement Project exhibited a visionary approach using the allocated funds to 
promote a safer and roadway corridor for vehicles, bicyclists and pedestrians within the Mission 
Road neighborhood.   

CONCLUSION 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution approving Road Maintenance and 
Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) Project List for Fiscal Year 2020-2021. 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Resolution Adopting Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) Project List 
for Fiscal Year 2020-21 

B. RMRA Project List for FY 2020-21  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Res. 2020-_____, FY 2020-21 SB 1 Project List Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO._______ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 FUNDED 
BY SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017 AND AMEND THE 

MISSION ROAD BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENT PROJECT BUDGET 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background.

(a) Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (Chapter 5, Statutes 
of 2017) was passed by the Legislature and Signed into law by the Governor in April 2017 to 
address the significant multi-modal transportation funding shortfalls statewide; and  

(b) SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure the residents of 
our Town are aware of the projects proposed for funding in our community and which projects 
have been completed each fiscal year; and 

(c) The Town must adopt by resolution a list of projects proposed to receive fiscal year 
funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by SB 1, which 
must include a description and the location of each proposed project, a proposed schedule for 
the project’s completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement; and 

(d) The Town, will receive an estimated $28,500 in RMRA funding in Fiscal Year 2020-21 from 
SB 1; and 

(e) This is the fourth year in which the Town is receiving SB 1 funding and will enable the 
Town to continue essential road maintenance and rehabilitation projects, safety improvements, 
repairing and replacing aging bridges, and increasing access and mobility options for the traveling 
public that would not have otherwise been possible without SB 1; and  

(f) The Town has undergone a robust public process to ensure public input into our 
community’s transportation priorities/the project list. The Town conducted community outreach 
workshop and online survey during implementation of Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR) 
project to give the community the opportunity to identify high-risk locations and discuss road 
safety concerns and potential safety treatments within Town’s roadway network. The Town also 
conducted two community workshops for Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements 
project that gave the community another opportunity to identify the improvements needed; and  

(g) The Town used a CIP budget to develop the SB 1 project list using Town General Plan, 
studies, observation, along with City Council, Public and Staff input to ensure revenues are being 
used on the most high-priority and cost-effective projects that also meet the communities 
priorities for transportation investment; and  

Attachment A



Res. 2020-_____, FY 2020-21 SB 1 Project List  Page 2 of 3 

(h) The Towns allotment of SB 1 funds will help fund the Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Improvements (CIP Project #903); and 

(i) The scope of work for CIP Project #903 includes various “Complete Streets” elements that 
will improve and enhance safety for bicycle and pedestrian activity along the Mission Road 
corridor, funding these enhancements are Gas Tax / RMRA eligible expenses; and 

(j) The Fiscal Year 2017-18 adopted Town Budget for Capital Improvement Project #903 
Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements is $1,383,500 funded by CIP General Funds 
as well as OBAG 2 Grants and SB 1 funds for FY 2017-18. 

(k) In the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Town Budget for Capital Improvement Project #903 Mission 
Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements will be $1,608,500 after including Safe Routes to 
School and Green Streets Infrastructure and SB 1 FY 2018-19 funds. 

(l) In the Fiscal Year 2019-20, SB 1 allocation is $25,000, reported to fund the Town’s Mission 
Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements (CIP Project # 903). 

(m) In the Fiscal Year 2020-21, SB 1 allocation is $28,500 to be designated for the Town’s 
Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements (CIP Project # 903). 

(n) The SB 1 project list and overall investment in our local streets and roads infrastructure 
with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, investing in complete streets infrastructure, and 
using cutting-edge technology, materials and practices, will have significant positive benefits to 
local and statewide communities. 

2. Findings and Order. 

The City Council finds and orders that: 

(a) The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 

(b) The project budget for the Town’s Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements 
(903) shall be increased to $1,662,000 and the City Council hereby authorizes the transfer of FY 
2019-20 SB 1 allocation of $25,000 and FY 2020-21 SB1 allocation of $28,500 into Street Capital 
Fund (32). 

 (c) The following previously proposed and adopted projects may utilize fiscal year 2020-21 
Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues in their delivery. With the relisting of 
these projects in the adopted fiscal year resolution, the Town is reaffirming to the public and the 
State our intent to fund these projects with Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account 
revenues:  

 RMRA 2020-21 Project List 



Res. 2020-_____, FY 2020-21 SB 1 Project List  Page 3 of 3 

The Project was originally listed in SB 1 for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 and re-listed for Fiscal 
Years 2018-2019 and 2019-2020. 

Project Description: Implementation of bicycle and pedestrian safety related 
improvements. The project scope includes: relocation and reconstruction of the existing 
curb, gutter, sidewalk, driveway approaches and non-ADA compliant ramps; addition of 
new continuous sidewalk; extension of Class II bicycle lanes with green pavement 
markings; construction of stormwater curb extension with bioretention/infiltration basins 
for stormwater treatment and high visibility crosswalks with rectangular rapid flashing 
beacons; installation of speed feedback signs and energy efficient street lights.  

Location: Mission Road between El Camino Real and Lawndale Boulevard. 

Scheduled Construction Completion: October 2020 (Bid will be advertised in April 
2020) 

Estimated Useful Life: 20 Years. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the Town of Colma held on April 8, 2020, by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Voting Tally      

 
 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      John Irish Goodwin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest: ____________________________ 
        Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



STATE OF CALIFORNIA • CALIFORNIA TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

Senate Bill (SB) 1 Proposed Project List Form

*Agency Name: (Select from dropdown list) LoCode:

*Agency Address: *City: *ZIP Code:

CA 94014

*Agency Contact: *Agency Contact Title:

*Agency Contact Phone No.: (i.e. 1234567890) *Agency Contact Email Address:

Funding for Fiscal Year: FY 17/18

Please briefly describe the budget support documentation being provided.

(Month) (Year)

80 08 2019

Project Flexibility:

* Required information

Part 1:  General Information

Local Streets and Roads Program

Colma 5264

1198 El Camino Real Colma

Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements project has been identified by Town of Colma as a high-

priority capital improvement project. With the inclusion of the Veteran's Housing facility on Mission Road, it’s 

close proximity to BART and the area being in a Priority Development Area (PDA), the Town believes that 

various improvements are needed for bicycle and pedestrian facilities along the corridor. These 

Town's adopted Resolution No. 2020-XX and Staff Report specifying the Mission Road Bicycle and /Pedestrian 

Improvements project (CIP Project #903) for approving Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) 

Project List for Fiscal Year 2020-21 funded by SB 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017.

Pursuant to SHC Section 2034(a)(1), this project list shall not limit the flexibility of an eligible city or county to 

fund projects in accordance with local needs and priorities, so long as the projects are consistent with SHC 

Section 2030(b). After submittal of the project list to the Commission, in the event a city or county elects to 

make changes to the project list pursuant to the statutory provision noted above, formal notification of the 

Commission is not required. However, the Project Expenditure Report form that is due to the Commission by 

October 1st each year, will provide an opportunity for jurisdictions to annually communicate such changes to 

the Commission as part of the regular reporting process.

Brad Donohue Director of Public Works

(650) 757-8888 brad.donohue@colma.ca.gov

Measurement Date: Average Network PCI: 

Additional Information: ? 

*Budget Support Documentation:?

20/21

Attachment B - Project List



STATE OF CALIFORNIA • CALIFORNIA TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

Senate Bill (SB) 1 Proposed Project List Form

* Required 

Type 
(Select from dropdown list)

Explanation 

(if "Other" is selected, 

please explain)

?

Pre-

Construction 
(mm/yyyy)

Construction 
(mm/yyyy)

Min. Max.
Sustainability

?

Technologies

?

Climate 

Change

?

Complete 

Streets 

Elements

?

Description of 

Elements

PP01 5264

Mission Road Bicycle and 

Pedestrian Improvements

CIP#903 Complete Streets 

Components

Implementation of bicycle and pedestrian safety related 

improvements. The project scope includes: relocation 

and reconstruction of the existing curb, gutter, sidewalk, 

driveway approaches and non-compliant ADA ramps; 

addition of new continuous sidewalk; extension of Class 

II bicycle lanes with green pavement markings; 

construction of stormwater curb extension with 

bioretention/infiltration basins for stormwater 

treatment and high visibility crosswalks with rectangular 

rapid flashing beacons (RRFB); installation of speed 

feedback signs and energy efficient street lights. An 

additional crosswalk #4 with RRFB has been considered 

into the scope of the project. 

Mission Road, between El Camino Real and 

Lawndale Boulevard

12/2019 10/2020 10 20 11 19 Yes No No Yes

Improve the 

accessibility and 

safety of bicycle and 

pedestrian facilities in 

compliance with 

Town's General Plan 

and Completed 

Streets Policies, in 

addition to Green 

Streets Infrastructure 

that includes 

bioretention areas 

(Rain Garden) for 

stormwater 

treatment.

PP02 5264

PP03 5264

PP04 5264

PP05 5264

PP06 5264

PP07 5264

PP08 5264

PP09 5264  

PP10 5264

PP11 5264

PP12 5264

PP13 5264

PP14 5264

PP15 5264

PP16 5264

PP17 5264

PP18 5264

PP19 5264

PP20 5264

PP21 5264

PP22 5264

PP23 5264

PP24 5264

PP25 5264

PP26 5264

PP27 5264

PP28 5264

PP29 5264

PP30 5264

PP31 5264

PP32 5264

PP33 5264

PP34 5264

PP35 5264

PP36 5264

PP37 5264

PP38 5264

PP39 5264

PP40 5264

PP41 5264

PP42 5264

PP43 5264

PP44 5264

PP45 5264

PP46 5264

PP47 5264

Legislative District(s)

LoCode

Part 2:  Project Information

Local Streets and Roads Program

Additional Project Elements 

(Does the project include element(s) as described in SHC 2030 (c)-(f)? 

(Select Y/N from dropdown list)

?Proposed 

Project 

(PP#)

* Project Title 
Project ID

(if any)

* Project Description

?

* Project Location 

?

State Senate
State 

Assembly 

* Estimated 

Completion Date

* Estimated 

Useful Life
(# of Yr)

Project Type

?

1 of 2



STATE OF CALIFORNIA • CALIFORNIA TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

Senate Bill (SB) 1 Proposed Project List Form

Agency Contact:

Brad Donohue

(650) 757-8888

LoCode: 5264 brad.donohue@colma.ca.gov

Pre-

Construction
Construction Min. Max.

PP01

Mission Road Bicycle and 

Pedestrian Improvements

Implementation of bicycle and pedestrian safety related 

improvements. The project scope includes: relocation and 

reconstruction of the existing curb, gutter, sidewalk, 

driveway approaches and non-compliant ADA ramps; 

addition of new continuous sidewalk; extension of Class II 

bicycle lanes with green pavement markings; construction 

of stormwater curb extension with 

bioretention/infiltration basins for stormwater treatment 

and high visibility crosswalks with rectangular rapid 

flashing beacons (RRFB); installation of speed feedback 

signs and energy efficient street lights. An additional 

crosswalk #4 with RRFB has been considered into the 

scope of the project. 

Mission Road, between El Camino Real and 

Lawndale Boulevard

12/2019 10/2020 10 20

PP02        

PP03        

PP04        

PP05        

PP06        

PP07        

PP08        

PP09        

PP10        

PP11        

PP12        

PP13        

Estimated 

Useful Life 
(# of yrs)

Local Streets and Roads Program

Project 

No.
Project Title Project Description Project Location

Estimated Completion Date
(mm/dd/yyyy)

FY

17/18

Agency  Name:

Colma

Summary of Proposed Project List 

1 of 3

          20/21



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report - Resolution Authorizing Acceptance of Real Property Interests by City Manager  Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM: Michael Laughlin, City Planner 

Christopher Diaz, City Attorney 
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: April 8, 2020 
SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing Acceptance of Real Property Interests 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT AND CONSENT TO DEEDS 
OR GRANTS CONVEYING ANY INTEREST IN OR EASEMENT UPON REAL ESTATE FOR 
PUBLIC PURPOSES 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

From time to time, the Town either requires or is offered various types of easements or rights-
of-way for public purposes. For the Town to accept the property interests for public purposes, 
either the City Council or an authorized Town officer must accept the property interests prior to 
recordation with the County Recorder. The City Council may authorize a Town officer to accept 
the property interests on its behalf. The proposed resolution authorizes the City Manager to accept 
these real property interests, which will expedite the recordation of interests to be acquired on 
behalf of the Town.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

None. 

ANALYSIS 

Government Code Section 27281 provides that deeds or grants conveying any interest in or 
easement upon real estate to a governmental agency for public purposes shall not be accepted 
for recordation without the consent of the City Council evidenced by its certificate or resolution 
of acceptance attached to or printed on the deed or grant. Government Code Section 27281 also 

Item #7



Staff Report - Resolution Authorizing Acceptance of Real Property Interests by City Manager  Page 2 of 3 

provides that the City Council may, by general resolution, authorize one or more officers of the 
Town to accept and consent to such deeds or grants on behalf of the City Council.   

The proposed action would eliminate the need City Council action for acceptance of property 
interests for public use by providing the City Manager with the ability to accept these property 
interests on the Council’s behalf. This change would improve efficiency and streamline the 
process of accepting such conveyances. 

As an example, staff is anticipating at least two situations that will require the acceptance of a 
public easement on private property. Both involve the granting of an easement to the Town to 
allow for a public sidewalk to wrap around the back of a driveway apron to maintain a 
consistent and relatively level path of travel for pedestrians and those in a wheelchair. Rather 
than grant additional right-of-way to the Town, the small easement would allow the property 
owner to retain the property but allow for pedestrians to utilize the sidewalk. Staff also 
anticipates that more easement dedications may be required in the future as private property 
owners and the Town look for creative ways to meet ADA path of travel requirements from the 
public sidewalk to a private business. If the City Council approves the proposed resolution, the 
City Manager could accept the dedications, which would reduce the staff time necessary to 
review and process these transactions.  Many jurisdictions in the state have adopted similar 
resolutions. 

CEQA ANALYSIS 
 
The proposed action is not a "project" under the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") 
because it does not involve any commitment to a specific project which may result in a 
potentially significant physical impact on the environment, as contemplated by Title 14 
California Code of Regulations § 15061. 
 
Council Adopted Values 

The City Council’s adoption of the resolution is both fair and responsible as the proposed action 
appropriately delegates ministerial authority to the City Manager and streamlines the 
acceptance process of such deeds and grants, which will result in a positive impact on the 
Town’s resources by saving staff time.  

Sustainability Impact 

None. 

Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to adopt the proposed resolution. Under this alternative, 
acceptances of deeds or grants conveying interests in real property to the Town for public 
purposes will continue to require individual City Council actions with separate resolutions.  

  



Staff Report - Resolution Authorizing Acceptance of Real Property Interests by City Manager  Page 3 of 3 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt the proposed resolution. 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Resolution  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT AND CONSENT TO 
DEEDS OR GRANTS CONVEYING ANY INTEREST IN OR EASEMENT UPON REAL 

ESTATE FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background.

(a) The Town of Colma has various projects requiring property interests to be conveyed to 
the Town. 

(b) Government Code Section 27281 provides that deeds or grants conveying any interest in 
or easement upon real estate to a governmental agency for public purposes shall not be accepted 
for recordation without the consent of the City Council evidenced by its certificate or resolution 
of acceptance attached to or printed on the deed or grant. 

(c) Government Code Section 27281 allows the City Council, by general resolution, to 
authorize one or more officers of the Town to accept and consent to such deeds or grants on 
behalf of the City Council. 

(d) In order to expedite the ministerial act of certifying to the acceptances of deeds or grants 
conveyed to the Town, it is the City Council’s desire to delegate this function to the City Manager. 

2. Order.

(a) In consultation with the City Attorney, the City Manager is hereby authorized to accept 
and consent to deeds or grants conveying any interest in or easement upon real estate to the 
Town of Colma for public purposes. 

(b) The City Manager shall utilize a certificate of acceptance in substantially the following form 
and the City Clerk shall record the certificate along with the deed or grant conveying the real 
property interest with the County Recorder: 

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE OF INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BY THE TOWN OF COLMA 
(GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 27281) 

This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by the deed (or grant) dated 
__________ from __________ to the Town of Colma, a municipal corporation, is hereby accepted 
by the City Manager pursuant to the authority of the City Manager to accept interests in real 
property on behalf of the Town of Colma conferred by City Council Resolution No. 2020-___ 
adopted on _________, 2020. The Town further consents to its recordation. 

Dated: ___________________ City Manager: ____________________ 

Attachment A



3. Effective Date. 

This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020-___ was adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on April 8, 2020 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez       
Helen Fisicaro      
Joanne F. del Rosario      

Voting Tally      
 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      John Irish Goodwin, Mayor 
 
 
      ATTEST: ____________________________ 
          Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 



Staff Report – SMC Strong Donation  Page 1 of 4 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Brian Dossey, City Manager  
MEETING DATE: April 8, 2020 
SUBJECT: Donation to San Mateo County Strong Fund 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the City Council to adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING DONATION OF ___________ DOLLARS TO THE SILICON 
VALLEY COMMUNITY FOUNDATION FOR THE SAN MATEO COUNTY STRONG FUND 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On March 24, 2020, the San Mateo County Board of Supervisors approved $3,000,000 in 
emergency funding to support those most impacted in San Mateo County in partnership with 
the Silicon Valley Community Foundation. 

Shortly thereafter, the County created a website dedicated to raising funds for the San Mateo 
Strong Fund (SMC Strong), San Mateo County’s relief effort to assist San Mateo County 
residents, small businesses, and non-profits adversely affected by the COVID-19 outbreak. 

Staff recommends that the City Council select an amount to donate to the SMC Strong Fund. A 
donation between $10,000 and $25,000 can be absorbed in the FY19-20 Budget. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

A donation between $10,000 and $25,000 can be absorbed in the FY19-20 Budget. 

BACKGROUND 

COVID-19 causes infectious diseases resulting in symptoms of fever, coughing, and shortness of 
breath.1  Reported illnesses have ranged from very mild to severe, including illnesses resulting in 
death. Older people and people of all ages with severe underlying health conditions such as heart 
disease, lung disease and diabetes, seem to be at higher risk of developing a serious COVID-19 
illness. Based on the experience with other coronaviruses that cause respiratory illness, the U.S. 
Center for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) currently believes that symptoms appear in two 

1 https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/about/symptoms.html 

Item #8

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/about/symptoms.html


   

Staff Report – SMC Strong Donation   Page 2 of 4 
 

(2) to fourteen (14) days after exposure. At this time, there is no vaccine to protect against 
COVID-19 and no medications to treat it. Since its discovery in December 2019 in Wuhan City, 
Hubei Province, Coronavirus has resulted in thousands of deaths.2 

• On March 4, 2020, California Governor Newsom declared a State of Emergency to 
make additional resources available, formalize emergency actions already underway across 
multiple state agencies and departments, and help the State prepare for broader spread of 
COVID-19.  

• On March 5, 2020, the San Mateo County Health Officer declared a Local Health 
Emergency pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 101080 due to the potential introduction 
of COVID-19 in San Mateo County. 

• On March 10, 2020, the San Mateo County Board of Supervisors voted to ratify the 
Health Officer’s declaration of a Local Health Emergency in response to COVID-19. 

• On March 12, 2020, the San Mateo County Health Officer issued a legal order 
prohibiting mass gatherings of 250 or more persons. The order applies to public and private 
gatherings and includes exceptions for houses of worship, museums, malls, hospital and medical 
facilities, and the normal operations of hotels and airports.  

• On March 14, 2020, the San Mateo County Health Officer issued an update 
regarding the legal order prohibiting mass gatherings. The order specifies that public and private 
gatherings of groups of 50 or more persons are prohibited in San Mateo County. 

• On March 16, 2020, the City Manager declared a local emergency which the City 
Council ratified at a special meeting on March 18, 2020.  At the special meeting, the City 
Council also adopted a resolution approving PPTO time off to employees related to COVID-19 
and adopted a resolution rolling over the FY19-20 budget to FY20-21. 

• On March 16, 2020, the San Mateo County Health Officer issued a Shelter in 
Place Order directing all individuals to shelter in place, except to provide or receive essential 
services or engage in certain essential activities, and work for essential businesses and 
governmental services through April 7, 2020. The Health Officer also ordered all businesses and 
governmental agencies to cease all non-essential operations at physical locations, prohibiting all 
non-essential travel and prohibiting all non-essential gatherings through April 7, 2020. 

• On March 24, 2020, the San Mateo County Board of Supervisors approved a 
donation to the Silicon Valley Community Foundation to launch the San Mateo County Strong 
Fund (“SMC Strong Fund”). The purpose of this fund will be to assist San Mateo County 
residents, small businesses, and non-profits adversely affected by the COVID-19 outbreak. The 
Board of Supervisors also adopted a resolution placing a moratorium on residential evictions for 
unpaid rent related to COVID-19.  

 
2 http://www.publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/ 

http://www.publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/


   

Staff Report – SMC Strong Donation   Page 3 of 4 
 

• On March 31, 2020, the San Mateo County Health Officer extended the Shelter in 
Place Order through May 3, 2020 and tightened the restrictions related to outdoor recreation and 
essential businesses. 

Town staff requests that the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing a donation to the Silicon 
Valley Foundation for the SMC Strong Fund in an amount of their choosing. The Town of Colma 
has provided such relief in the past; most recently after the September 11, 2001 tragedy that 
took over 2,977 lives and injured over 6,000, where the Town donated $25,000 to the Twin 
Towers Fund in New York. 

ANALYSIS 

The San Mateo County Strong Fund was established by the San Mateo County Board of 
Supervisors on March 24, 2020 to assist individuals, families, non-profits, and small businesses 
that have been adversely affected by the COVID-19 outbreak. The Board of Supervisors started 
the SMC Strong Fund with a $3 million contribution, and will approve a distribution plan for 
each recipient group—individuals and families, non-profits, and small businesses—adversely 
affected by COVID-19. The fund is managed by the Silicon Valley Community Foundation. 

All donations will go to assist residents of San Mateo County, non-profits that assist County 
residents, and small businesses located in San Mateo County.  

The County is seeking additional donations to build up the fund, and lend assistance to County 
residents, small businesses, and non-profit groups that serve the County.  Many throughout the 
County have donated to the fund including residents and businesses, and staff is recommending 
that the Town of Colma also make a contribution to the fund. 

Many of our Town residents and businesses have been affected by COVID-19 and could be 
eligible for this much needed funding. Some residents are not able to work at this time and are 
experiencing hardships, and many businesses in Town have been deemed non-essential and 
have been closed due to COVID-19.   

Attached are FAQs provided by the County which provide additional information regarding the 
SMC Strong Fund. 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing a donation to the Silicon 
Valley Foundation for the SMC Strong Fund in an amount of their choosing. 

Council Adopted Values 
 
The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of responsibility. By contributing to 
the SMC Strong Fund, the City Council will provide much needed financial assistance to the 
community at large. 

 
CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing a donation to the Silicon 
Valley Community Foundation for the SMC Strong Fund in an amount of their choosing. 



   

Staff Report – SMC Strong Donation   Page 4 of 4 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Resolution 
B. San Mateo County Strong FAQs 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



Res. 2020-XX, SMC Strong Donation (Adopted _____________) Page 1 of 3 
32843185_1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-XX 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING DONATION OF ________ DOLLARS TO THE SILICON 
VALLEY COMMUNITY FOUNDATION FOR THE SAN MATEO COUNTY STRONG FUND 

The City Council of the Town of Colma hereby resolves: 

1. Background.

(a)  On or about March 4, 2020, as part of the State of California's response to address the 
global COVID-19 outbreak, Governor Gavin Newsom declared a State of Emergency to make 
additional resources available, formalize emergency actions already underway across multiple 
state agencies and departments, and help the state prepare for broader spread of COVID-19. 

(b) On March 5, 2020, the San Mateo County Health Officer declared a Local Health 
Emergency pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 101080 due to the potential introduction 
of COVID-19 in San Mateo County. 

(c) On March 10, 2020, the San Mateo County Board of Supervisors voted to ratify the Health 
Officer’s declaration of a Local Health Emergency in response to COVID-19. 

(d) On March 12, 2020, the San Mateo County Health Officer issued a legal order prohibiting 
mass gatherings of 250 or more persons. The order applied to public and private gatherings and 
includes exceptions for houses of worship, museums, malls, hospital and medical facilities, and 
the normal operations of hotels and airports. 

(e) On March 14, 2020, the San Mateo County Health Officer issued an update regarding the 
legal order prohibiting mass gatherings. The order specified that public and private gatherings of 
groups of 50 or more persons are prohibited in San Mateo County. 

(f) On March 16, 2020, the City Manager declared a local emergency, which the City Council 
ratified at a special meeting on March 18, 2020. At the special meeting, the City Council also 
adopted a resolution approving Pandemic Paid Time Off (“PPTO”) to employees related to COVID-
19 and adopted a resolution rolling over the FY19-20 budget to FY20-21. 

(g) On March 16, 2020, the San Mateo County Health Officer issued a Shelter in Place Order 
directing all individuals to shelter in place, except to provide or receive essential services or 
engage in certain essential activities, and work for essential businesses and governmental services 
through April 7, 2020. The Health Officer also ordered all businesses and governmental agencies 
to cease all non-essential operations at physical locations, prohibiting all non-essential travel and 
prohibiting all non-essential gatherings through April 7, 2020. 

(h) On March 24, 2020, the San Mateo County Board of Supervisors approved a donation to 
the Silicon Valley Community Foundation to launch the San Mateo County Strong Fund (“SMC 
Strong Fund”), a recovery fund to assist individuals, families, non-profits, and small businesses 
that have been adversely affected by the COVID-19 outbreak. The Board of Supervisors also 

Attachment A



Res. 2020-XX, SMC Strong Donation (Adopted _____________)  Page 2 of 3 
32843185_1  
 

adopted a resolution placing a moratorium on residential evictions for unpaid rent related to 
COVID-19. 
 
(i) On March 19, 2020, the Governor issued a statewide shelter-in-place order in Executive 
Order N-33-20. 
 
(j) On March 31, 2020, the San Mateo County Health Officer extended the Shelter in Place 
Order through May 3, 2020 and tightened the restrictions related to outdoor recreation and 
essential businesses. 
 
(k) While the long-term societal impacts of COVID-19 will not be known for some time, the 
immediate impacts to the local San Mateo County community have already been substantial, as 
residents throughout the County are confronting sudden and substantial income loss due to 
business and school closures, corresponding layoffs or loss of work hours and wages, and 
extraordinary out-of-pocket medical expenses. 
 
(l) The County’s most vulnerable residents and small businesses have been hit hardest by 
this crisis. 
 
(m) The Silicon Valley Community Foundation manages the San Mateo County Strong Fund to 
support local residents, non-profits, and small businesses adversely impacted by COVID-19. The 
County is seeking additional donations to build up the fund, and lend assistance to County 
residents, small businesses, and non-profit organizations that serve the County.   
 
2. Findings. 

(a) The City Council finds that the expenditure authorized herein will serve a public purpose. 
The expenditure of public funds to support San Mateo County individuals, families, non-profits, 
and small businesses that have been adversely affected by the COVID-19 outbreak, as facilitated 
through the SMC Strong Fund, will provide an identifiable benefit to the community at large.  This 
is a benefit not only throughout San Mateo County, but the north County and the Town of Colma, 
in particular, as many of the County’s most vulnerable population tends to be located in certain 
parts of the County, including the north County. The public benefit is substantial, as the funding 
will assist individuals and families in all of San Mateo County, including the Town, needing 
assistance with basic needs due to COVID-19, non-profit organizations that provide services and 
support to the most vulnerable San Mateo County residents for operating support, and San Mateo 
County small businesses affected by COVID-19. 
 
(b) This donation will not be used to fund religious organizations, a political campaign, or 
lobbying activities.  
 
(c) The donation will be made with the understanding that the Town has no obligation or 
commitment to provide any additional support and that the grantee will not discriminate on the 
basis of race, color, religion, gender, age, weight, height, sexual orientation, marital status, 
national origin, disability or other characteristic protected by law. 

/ 

/ 



Res. 2020-XX, SMC Strong Donation (Adopted _____________)  Page 3 of 3 
32843185_1  
 

3. Order. 

(a) The City Council hereby authorizes a donation to the Silicon Valley Community Foundation 
in the total amount of ____________ Dollars ($__________) to benefit San Mateo County 
individuals and families, non-profit organizations, and small businesses adversely impacted by 
COVID-19 through contribution to the SMC Strong Fund, which will assist individuals and families 
in San Mateo County needing assistance with basic needs due to COVID-19, non-profit 
organizations that provide services and support to the most vulnerable San Mateo County 
residents for operating support, and San Mateo County small businesses affected by COVID-19. 

(b) The City Manager is hereby authorized to effectuate the authorized donation of funds in 
accordance with the terms and intent of this Resolution. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020-XX was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on April 8, 2020, by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez       
Helen Fisicaro      
Joanne F. del Rosario      

Voting Tally      
 
 
 
Dated              

John Irish Goodwin, Mayor 
 
 
___________________________ 
Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



1 

Frequently Asked Questions 

General Questions 
1. What is the San Mateo County Strong Fund?

The San Mateo County Strong Fund (SMC Strong) was established by the San Mateo County
Board of Supervisors on March 24, 2020 to assist individuals, families, non-profits and small
businesses that have been adversely affected by the COVID-19 outbreak.

2. How can I donate to the fund?

Donations can be made by going to www.SMCSTRONG.org .  Donations are accepted via PayPal
and credit card.

3. Will all the funds be distributed in San Mateo County?

Yes.  All donations will go to assist residents of San Mateo County, non-profits that assist County
residents and small businesses located in San Mateo County.

4. Did San Mateo County contribute to the SMC Strong Fund?

Yes.  The San Mateo County Board of Supervisors approved a $3 million contribution of Measure
K funds to the SMC Strong fund on March 24, 2020.

5. How is the fund managed?

The San Mateo County Strong fund is managed by the Silicon Valley Community Foundation.
The Foundation is charging a 1% management fee, a reduced rate from their usual 5%
management fee.

6. Are contributions to the fund tax-deductible?

All contributions to the fund are treated as gifts to a public charity and are generally tax
deductible, subject to individual limitations. We recommend consulting a tax professional if you
have questions about the deductibility of your gift to the fund.

Attachment B

http://www.smcstrong.org/
http://www.smcstrong.org/


2 
 

7. Who will decide how the funds are distributed? 

The Board of Supervisors will approve a distribution plan for each recipient group, individuals 
and families, non-profits and small businesses adversely affected by COVID-19.  

8. How can donors be sure their contributions are going to help people in need, non-profits or 
small businesses adversely affected by COVID? 

As noted above, the County Board of Supervisors is approving distribution plans for all 
contributions to SMC Strong. For example, plans will require non-profit grantees to report on 
how awards are spent including number of people assisted and how grant funds are being 
applied to operating expenses.  That information will be reported back to the Board on a 
monthly basis.  See details on assistance for individuals and families below which includes 
documentation requirements for income and need along with payments for expenses to 
vendors, not cash payments to applicants.   The details on the small business distribution 
program are still being developed, but the same type of fraud prevention measures will be 
included in that program too.   

Assistance for Individuals and Families Affected by COVID 
1. How will funds be distributed to individuals and families? 

The funds to assist individuals and families adversely affected by COVID-19 will be distributed, 
based on eligibility and funding availability, through the Emergency Financial Assistance 
program managed by Samaritan House in coordination with the eight Core Service Agencies 
located throughout the county. San Mateo County residents interested in accessing services, 
including applying for emergency financial assistance, can contact their local Core Service 
Agency. Contact information for the Core Service Agencies is found at: 

 https://hsa.smcgov.org/emergency-safety-net-assistance-core-service-agencies 

2. What kind of assistance is provided? 

COVID-19 Emergency Financial Assistance can be used to pay for the following emergency 
needs: 

• Housing assistance such as deposits, rent or mortgage payments 
• Utility arrears or deposits 
• Transportation assistance such as car repairs, vehicle registration or other 

transportation needs 
• Other essential needs, such as medical expenses, as determined on a case by 

case basis 
 

3. What are the eligibility requirements for the COVID emergency financial assistance program? 

To be eligible for COVID-19 emergency financial assistance, an individual or household must 
meet all the following criteria and provide the requested documentation about their 
household’s financial and housing situation in order to be considered for the available funding: 

https://hsa.smcgov.org/emergency-safety-net-assistance-core-service-agencies


3 
 

• Be a San Mateo County resident; and 
• Demonstrate through paystubs, bank accounts and/or other documents a 

household income within the past 30 days at or below the income eligibility 
threshold, which is currently 60% of the Area Median Income.  (Note: the 
specific income threshold may be shifted, as the COVID-19 situation/response 
evolves.); and 

 
Size of 

Household 
(# of people) 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

Income Limit $67,740 $77,400 $87,060 $96,720 $104,460 $112,200 $119,940 $127,680 
 

• Demonstrate financial hardship resulting from COVID-19 such as proof of lost or 
reduction in income; and 

• Demonstrate financial need such as a letter for past due rent from a landlord, 
past due utility or medical bills, emergency car repair or vehicle registration 
which if not addressed would create hardship for the household; and 

• Ability to maintain housing or have a plan in place to maintain housing which 
will be determined on a case by case basis. 

 
4. Are there eligibility requirements related to citizenship or documentation status? 

No.   All residents who meet the eligibility requirements, regardless of citizenship or 
documentation status may apply for COVID-19 Emergency Financial Assistance.   

5. Where do I go to apply for COVID Emergency Financial Assistance? 

Call or visit your nearest Core Service Agency (contacting by phone is preferred at this time due 
to social distancing).  See the list at the link below to locate the Core Service Agency that serves 
your area of the County. 

 https://hsa.smcgov.org/emergency-safety-net-assistance-core-service-agencies 

6. What happens if I request financial assistance through the COVID Emergency Financial 
Assistance program? 

When you contact your local Core Service Agency, the staff there will ask for information about 
your household and your current situation (including income, financial resources, and housing). 
If it seems that your household may be eligible, the Core Service Agency staff will provide you 
with information on the application process, which includes providing various verification 
documents (related to income and financial resources, employment, housing situation, etc.). 
Once all requested information and documents are submitted, the Core Service Agency and 
Samaritan House staff will review and may ask for additional information or documentation. The 
Core Service Agency staff will communicate to you regarding the result of your application and 
whether assistance will be able to be provided, based on the eligibility criteria and the available 
funding, as funding is limited.   

 

https://hsa.smcgov.org/emergency-safety-net-assistance-core-service-agencies


4 
 

7. How much money is available through the COVID Emergency Financial Assistance Program? 

The Board of Supervisors directed $1 million of their contribution to SMC Strong to the COVID-
19 Emergency Financial Assistance Program.  If additional donations are received from private 
donors, charitable foundations or other sources, that amount will increase. 

8. How much does each applicant receive from the COVID-19 Emergency Financial Assistance 
Fund? 

For applicants who are eligible, whether or not they receive assistance and if they do, what 
amount of assistance they receive, is dependent on factors such as   their household’s income, 
resources, and need and on the availability of funding, as funding is limited. 

9. For clients who are eligible and determined that they will receive assistance, will they receive 
the assistance as cash? 

No.  The Emergency Financial Assistance Program will direct payments on behalf of approved 
applicants.   For example, an approved partial rent payment would be made directly to the 
property owner or payment for emergency and necessary car repairs would be made directly to 
the repair shop.  

10. What if I need help with other needs such as groceries or help applying for unemployment? 

For questions about food resources and how to access meal and grocery assistance programs, 
contact Second Harvest of Silicon Valley’s Food Connection line at 800-984-3663. 

You can find out more about unemployment insurance and can apply online at 
https://www.edd.ca.gov/unemployment/  

You can also contact the Core Service Agency that serves your area as they provide a variety of 
services including food resources, assistance with applying for resources like CalFresh and 
others, and referrals for homeless services.   If you need assistance that the Core Service Agency 
can’t provide directly, they will make every effort to connect you to local agencies and 
organizations that can meet your needs.  A link to the Core Services Agencies is below. 

https://hsa.smcgov.org/emergency-safety-net-assistance-core-service-agencies 

 

Operational Assistance for Non-profit Organizations 
1. Why is the SMC Strong Fund providing operational assistance to non-profit organizations? 

Since the county’s shelter in place order was issued on March 16, 2020, all types of non-profit 
organizations throughout San Mateo County have seen a reduction in volunteers who make up a 
significant percentage of their workforce, an increased need for technology such as laptops and 
VPN access along with cleaning and sanitization supplies to protect the health of both clients 
and staff and also a loss in revenue due to cancelled fundraising events.  All non-profits in the 
county are being affected by COVID-19.  The impacts range from shutting down operations to 
addressing the needs of more, potentially many more eligible residents.   

https://www.edd.ca.gov/unemployment/
https://hsa.smcgov.org/emergency-safety-net-assistance-core-service-agencies


5 
 

2. Has the County prioritized how assistance for non-profits will be distributed? 

Yes, from the County’s $3 million contribution to the SMC Strong Fund, the Board of Supervisors 
prioritized $1 million to the Core Service Agencies to operate, oversee and report on the COVID-
19 Emergency Financial Assistance Program.   For this first round of funding, the Board is also 
directing additional funds to the agencies that provide shelter for our homeless residents.  

3. Will there be additional rounds of funding for non-profits organizations?   

Additional funding for non-profit agencies will depend on the contributions to the SMC Strong 
Fund.  Staff are preparing a recommended distribution plan based on surveys of non-profits with 
a focus on agencies that provide support our most vulnerable residents, those with very low 
incomes, the elderly, people who have disabilities, and people wo are experiencing 
homelessness. 

4. Can a non-profit organization apply now for future rounds of funding? 

No.   The Board of Supervisors will determine priorities for any future rounds of funding at their 
April 7, 2020 meeting. Priority will be given to agencies that provide direct services for the most 
vulnerable residents, agencies that have established funding and reporting relationships with 
the County and agencies that can leverage County funds with commitments from other funders.       

 

Assistance for Small Businesses 
1. How will SMC Strong funds be distributed to small businesses? 

The San Mateo County Economic Development Association (SAMCEDA) has been designated by 
the County as the lead for business resources during the COVID-19 pandemic, and is developing 
a recommended distribution process for the small business assistance program.  To develop that 
process, SAMCEDA is working closely with chambers of commerce, convention and visitor’s 
bureaus, non-profits, and other stakeholders throughout the County to survey local small 
businesses and employers about how COVID-19 is impacting their operations and what support 
they need most in the short term - (take the survey here).  A recommended process for 
distributions under the small business assistance program will be presented to the Board of 
Supervisors at their meeting on April 7, 2020.        

2. Can a small business pre-apply or get on a waiting list now? 

No.  The application process will be opened after the plan for distributions under the small 
business assistance plan is approved by the Board of Supervisors.  Interested business should 
complete the SAMCEDA survey and follow the SAMCEDA website at 
https://www.samceda.org/COVID-19-Resource-Links-Business for updates on the plan and links 
to COVID-19 related business resources.   

3. How can I and/or my employees get help applying for unemployment? 

Employees can find out more information about unemployment insurance and how to apply 
online at https://www.edd.ca.gov/unemployment/ 

https://www.samceda.org/COVID-19-Resource-Links-Business


6 
 

 
4. How can I learn more about the Federal Stimulus bill or other State and Federal programs for 

small businesses? 
 

FEDERAL LINKS: 
• Paycheck Protection Program FAQs for Small Business 
• Small Business Administration (SBA): Coronavirus (COVID-19): Small Business Guidance & 

Loan Resources 
• Small Business Administration (SBA): COVID-19 Economic Injury Disaster Loan Application 
• Center for Economic and Policy Research (CEPR): Federal Stimulus FAQ 

STATE LINKS: 
• Governor’s Office of Business and Economic Development (GO-Biz): Coronavirus 2019 
• America’s SBDC California: COVID-19 – The Latest News & Resources for Your Business 
• Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (Cal OES) 

SAN MATEO COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION (SAMCEDA): 
• Business Resources 
• Financial Relief 
• Find Your Local Chambers 
• Take Our Small Business Survey 

https://www.rubio.senate.gov/public/_cache/files/ac3081f6-14ae-4e6f-9197-172ede28badd/71AB6CB05A08E369E0D488A80B3874A5.faqs---paycheck-protection-program-faqs-for-small-businesses.pdf
https://www.sba.gov/page/coronavirus-covid-19-small-business-guidance-loan-resources
https://www.sba.gov/page/coronavirus-covid-19-small-business-guidance-loan-resources
https://covid19relief.sba.gov/#/
https://cepr.net/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/2020-03-COVID-19-Fact-Sheet.pdf
https://business.ca.gov/coronavirus-2019/
https://www.californiasbdc.org/sites/default/files/Covid19-survival-guide_sbdc_3-26-v3.pdf
https://www.samceda.org/sites/default/files/CARES%20Act%20FAQ.pdf
https://www.samceda.org/COVID-19-Resource-Links-Business
https://www.samceda.org/Financial-Relief
https://www.samceda.org/COVID-19-Resource-Links-Chambers-Partners
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/BXH6H86


Mission Road Bicycle & Pedestrian Improvement Project Page 1 of 5 
04/08/2020 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM: Brad Donohue, Public Works Director, CSG 

Cyrus Kianpour, City Engineer, CSG 
Abdulkader Hashem, Project Manager, CSG 

VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: April 8, 2020 
SUBJECT:  Mission Road Improvement Project – Bid Package Approval 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING BID DOCUMENT PACKAGE AND AUTHORIZING STAFF TO 
ADVERTISE NOTICE INVITING BIDS FOR THE MISSION ROAD BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (CIP #903)  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Staff has prepared project plans and bid specifications (“Bid Package”) for the Mission Road 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Project (“Project”). On federal and state funded projects, 
various approvals are required including an environmental review and a Right of Way (ROW) 
clearance review. Once these reviews are completed and the various agencies that oversee these 
tasks give their written approval (E76 clearance), the Town is authorized to go to bid and 
subsequently proceed with construction. The Town has now received their E76 from Caltrans and 
is authorized to proceed to bidding and construction.  

Prior to publishing and advertising the Project Bid Package, Staff is requesting that City Council 
review and approve the Project Bid Package including the attached plans and specifications. If 
approved, Staff requests that the City Council authorize Staff to proceed with advertising the 
notice inviting bids for the Project.  If approved, the Project Bid Package will be made available 
online for public review and advertised in accordance with the Uniform Public Construction Cost 
Accounting Act. 

From preliminary estimates, staff believes that a budget amendment will be needed to make up 
the shortfall from staff’s original projections.  

Item #9



Mission Road Bicycle & Pedestrian Improvement Project  Page 2 of 5 
04/08/2020 

FISCAL IMPACT 

In the FY 2019-20 adopted budget document, the Mission Rd project has a project budget of 
$1,608,500. The funding sources included $590,000 of General Fund monies and the rest from 
various grant funding’s – Federal One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) program, a duel grant which is 
administered by C/CAG using funds from Safe Routes to School and the County’s Stormwater 
Green Infrastructure program. The project also includes funding from the County’s allocated 
Measure A and State allocated Gas Tax grant funding. Additionally, the annual SB 1 Gas Tax 
allocation is designated for this fund. After taking account the SB 1 Gas Tax allocation for FY 
2019-20 and FY 2020-21, the total project budget for Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian project 
is $1,662,000.  

No. Source of Fund 
 

Amount 

1 Total Livable Communities (TLC) program – One Bay Area 
Grant 2 (OBAG 2) 

$525,000 

2 Federal Local Streets and Roads (LSR) program One Bay Area 
Grant 2 (OBAG 2) 

$100,000 

3 Safe Routes to School-Green Streets Infrastructure 
 

$200,000 

4 Local Measure A 
 

$160,000 

5 RMRA (SB 1) fund FY 2017-18 
 

$8,500 

6 RMRA (SB 1) fund FY 2018-19 
 

$25,000 

7 RMRA (SB 1) Fund FY 2019-20 
 

$25,000* 

8 RMRA (SB 1) Fund FY 2020-21 
 

$28,500* 

9 Colma General Fund (In Fund 32) $590,000 
        TOTAL 
 

$1,662,000 

* Budget Increase pending City Council Approval of FY 2020-21 RMRA (SB 1) Project List.  

 

Due to unexpected legislative compliance, increase in scope, and changes in construction costs, 
Staff anticipates that additional funding will be required and will make the recommendation for a 
budget amendment after bids are received and reviewed and a contract is brought forward for 
award. 

Please note any unspent funds from the 2019-2020 fiscal year will be carried over to the 2020-
2021 fiscal year. 

BACKGROUND 

The Town applied for and was granted funds to improve pedestrian and bicycle mobility in the 
Mission Road area. What originally started off as an improvement project for ADA upgrades and 
bike path improvements has grown to be a project to help revitalize the Mission Road 



Mission Road Bicycle & Pedestrian Improvement Project  Page 3 of 5 
04/08/2020 

Commercial/Residential District by providing continuous pedestrian walkways and bicycle paths, 
installing several high visible crosswalks, street lighting, green landscaping infrastructure and 
other improvements.  

One of the conditions in accepting the Federal and State grants is complying with their 
environmental review guidelines and ROW certification clearance. The Federal grant also required 
that the Town work with the immediate community (Mission Road business and residents) and 
holding community meetings to review, comment and advise on the proposed project. Staff and 
consultant held two outreach lunch meetings at Molloy’s Tavern and conducted several visits to 
the various businesses and residential properties in the neighborhood. Though the proposed 
meetings were well advertised, the outreach meetings were only moderately attended. What we 
did get from the public were comments that we felt were representative of the whole Mission 
Road Community.  Some of the comments, wants and needs included: Continuous sidewalks, 
removal of tripping hazards, safe crosswalks, reduce speeding, landscaping where available, more 
street lighting and well delineated bike paths. Some did mention that with the inclusion of 
Veterans Village, it is imperative that these improvements move forward.  

The environmental review studied items such as Historical relevance (i.e., will the Project have 
adverse effects on historical features within the community?), Biological (i.e., endangered species 
impacts), Archeological (i.e., will the Project disrupt or have an adverse effect on any 
archeological sites in the Project area?).  The ROW Certification included verification that the 
various utility companies that are currently undergrounded would be responsible for utility 
relocation if required, verifying that improvement work was within the ROW and not on private 
property, providing construction staging areas and other items. Staff along with various 
consultants completed the rigorous environmental and ROW Certification requirements set by 
both State and Federal agencies and was cleared to move ahead with the Project.   

 
ANALYSIS 

With the aid of the Town’s ADA Transition plan, the counter measures stated in the Systemic 
Safety Analysis (SSAR), goals that were established in the Town’s  Climate Action and Green 
Infrastructure Plans, the community’s contribution to the Project, and third party agency 
requirements, staff has developed a set of plans and specifications that will enhance pedestrian 
and bicycle mobility, and provide a higher level of safety for those who use the ROW for walking, 
biking and vehicle travel.  

Some of the improvements that are being recommended are as follows: 

• Continuous accessible sidewalks on both side of the roadway from El Camino Real to 
Lawndale Boulevard. 

• 4 High Visible Crosswalks, inclusive of pedestrian sidewalk bulb outs to shorten the walk 
across the roadway and Rapid flashing beacons to alert vehicles that pedestrians are either 
entering or crossing the street.  

• Attractive landscape bioretention, to assist in storm water treatment along with bringing 
in a sustainable landscape feature. Educational signage will also be included to provide 
notice regarding the value of proper stormwater treatment. 



Mission Road Bicycle & Pedestrian Improvement Project  Page 4 of 5 
04/08/2020 

• Continuous streetlights on the east side of Mission Road, lighting that will contribute to 
safer paths of travel for those who walk and bike at night, it will also assist drivers with 
nighttime driving and parking in the Mission Road area.  

• Street resurfacing with new street stripping clearly delineating speed limits, crosswalks, 
and enhanced bike paths.  

• Automated speed limit signs to assist in reducing speeding through the Mission Road area 
and help prevent accidents caused by excessive speeds. 

Project plans and specification have been completed and approved by the various Federal, State 
and County agencies.  

As previously stated, the addition of the various enhancements has caused hard and soft cost to 
exceed the original budget.  To make up this shortfall, staff is working with the Town Finance 
Department.  Proposed solutions would be to use a greater amount of other outside funding 
(Measure A, M and W and Gas Tax), re-appropriation of CIP funds for other capital projects that 
would take place in the future, and an additional contribution from the Town’s reserves. This 
finance proposal will be explained in greater detail when this item is brought before the City 
Council for contract award. 

Upon review and feedback from the City Council, Staff will make all revisions directed by the City 
Council and proceed to advertising the Project Bid Package. Staff and the project management 
team will continue to update the City Council and the City Manager regarding the bidding process. 

The proposed tentative Project schedule is as follows: 

 

 April 8, 2020: Staff will present the Project Bid Package, including plans and 
specifications, to the City Council for review, comment, 
approval and direction to move forward with public bidding. 

 March 22, 2020: The Project Bid Package will be advertised. 

 May 6, 2020: Pre-Bid Meeting 

 May 20 Bid closing deadline 

 June 10, 2020:           Contract Award 

 

ALTERNATIVES 

City Council Could: 

 Proceed with the project with only the items that are required to be constructed with the 
various grants. This is doable but not recommended, the Project will feel incomplete. 



Mission Road Bicycle & Pedestrian Improvement Project  Page 5 of 5 
04/08/2020 

 Direct staff to value engineer the drawings to hopefully reduce costs, the cost of re-
engineering the Project more than likely will not significantly change and the cost for redesign 
would increase. A strong chance of time being spent and reduction in Project cost would be 
negligible.   

 Ask staff to consider some of the Project features to be “Add Alternatives” and be part of the 
bid process.  If the bids come in more than expected, City Council along with Staff can adjust 
the awarded contract by eliminating portions of the project through the Add Alternatives. This 
is not ideal, and the Town may see other items within the base bid go up in value to 
compensate the contractor adequately for their efforts. You also see that your add alternatives 
are typically undervalued and the deduct is typically not worth it.   

Council Adopted Values 

Adoption of the resolution is consistent with the City Council’s value of being responsible staying 
committed to their strategic plan and goals. By improving the Mission Road and its facilities, the 
City Council is improving the accessibility and safety features on and along the Mission Road 
corridor for all pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular activity. 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT 

This resolution in support of the Mission Road Bicycle & Pedestrian Improvements – Bid Package 
is consistent with the Town’s sustainability goals and Complete Streets and Green Streets Program 
goals. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff seeks Council’s adoption of the resolution approving the Project Bid Package, including plans 
and specifications, and authorizing advertisement of the noticing inviting bids for the Project.  

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution 
B. Project Plans for Presentation  
C. Full Bid Documents – Plans & Specifications Town Website,  

       (  https://www.colma.ca.gov/current-capital-projects/ ) 

https://www.colma.ca.gov/current-capital-projects/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Reso 2020-__, Mission Road Improvement Project Bid Package Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. XXXX-XX 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING BID DOCUMENT PACKAGE AND AUTHORIZING STAFF TO 
ADVERTISE NOTICE INVITING BIDS FOR THE MISSION ROAD IMPROVEMENT 

PROJECT 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does resolve as follows: 

1. Background

(a) The City Council of the Town of Colma has reviewed plans and specifications for the 
Sterling Park Playground Improvement Project; and 

(b) Staff has recommended approval of said plans and specifications; and 

(c) The proposed project is a public works project requiring competitive bidding. 

2. Findings

(a) The City Council finds that the design set forth in the plans and specifications is 
reasonable. 

(b) Town staff is currently analyzing the full amount needed for the project and will return 
for a budget adjustment at the time of contract award. 

3. Approval and Authorization

(a) The plans and specifications for the Mission Road Improvement Project, a copy of which 
is on file at Town Hall, are hereby approved. 

(b) Staff is hereby authorized to advertise the notice inviting bids for the project.  

(c) The City Manager is hereby authorized to make minor changes to the project as needed. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

Attachment A



Res 2020-__, Mission Road Improvement Project Bid Package Page 2 of 2  
 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution XXXX-XX was duly adopted at a regular meeting of said 
City Council held on April 8, 2020 by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      

Diana Colvin      

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      

Joanne F. del Rosario      

Helen Fisicaro      

Voting Tally      
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      John Irish Goodwin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 



Attachment B































 



Staff Report - CCGA JPA Study Session  Page 1 of 4 
April 8, 2020

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Brian Dossey, City Manager  
MEETING DATE: April 8, 2020 
SUBJECT: California Cities Gaming Authority 

RECOMMENDATION 

This item is a study session for information purposes only. No City Council action is required; 
however, staff seeks comments, questions, impressions and opinions from Council members 
and members of the public regarding the California Cities Gaming Authority.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In January of this year, the Town of Colma was invited to join the newly founded California Cities 
Gaming Authority (CCGA), a joint powers authority which was formed to protect the interests of 
cities state-wide with licensed card rooms. The CCGA is recruiting approximately seventeen other 
cities to be a part of the CCGA Joint Powers Authority (JPA).  Currently, there are two member 
cities who make up the JPA (City of Gardena and City of Inglewood).   

As you may know the Attorney General and Director of the California Bureau of Gambling Control 
are threatening to revoke licensed games and possibly enact new regulations on the rotation of 
the payer-dealer position in cardrooms throughout the state.  If both changes are made, they will 
negatively impact a significant amount of the Town’s cardroom revenues.   

At the March 11 City Council meeting, the Council conducted a study session on whether to join 
the CCGA.  At the study session the Council heard from staff and CCGA Executive Director Rudy 
Bermudez.  After the discussion and questions and answers the Council requested the following 
information. 

• Bio’s and resume’s on CCGA staff
• CCGA Budget
• Possible JPA amendment pertaining to the Treasurer.

The purpose of tonight’s study session is to review the new materials provided and obtain 
feedback on the possibility of joining the CCGA.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

If the City Council directs staff to return with the CCGA JPA for consideration and adoption, the 
fiscal year cost is $30,000. 

Item #10



   

Staff Report - CCGA JPA Study Session   Page 2 of 4 
April 8, 2020 

BACKGROUND  

Over the last two years Lucky Chances Casino has operated with the threat of change in the 
player-dealer position and the withdrawal of previously approved Blackjack games.  On two 
separate occasions over the past two years the Mayor of Colma has spoken before the Bureau of 
Gambling Control at statewide workshops regarding the proposed changes.  At each workshop 
the Mayor informed the Bureau that if the proposed changes are implemented, the Town’s 
revenues would be significantly impacted, and that the Town would not be able to provide vital 
services to the community and jobs will be lost.  Even though several of these workshops have 
been held all over the state of California, and thousands of cardroom workers and representatives 
from cities have spoken before the Bureau, there appears to be no changes in the proposed 
gaming language.  This is very concerning for cardrooms and the cities that have cardrooms.  The 
player-dealer position and potential withdrawal of previously approved Blackjack games are the 
top priority for the CCGA. 
 
The CCGA was formed in November 2019 by the City of Gardena and the City of Inglewood in an 
effort to give cities one collective voice when cardroom issues arise with the Attorney General or 
Bureau of Gambling Control.  Currently the cardrooms have a collective voice through lobbyists 
and public affairs groups, however the cities do not.  The CCGA is recruiting cities with small to 
medium size cardrooms (20-80 tables); by working together the cities can be more effective when 
advocating for proposed changes that impact our cardrooms.  Having individual cities of 
cardrooms represent themselves at meetings and workshops is sometimes difficult, inconsistent, 
and mixed messaging can sometimes be communicated, often making decision making more 
difficult for lawmakers.   
 
Joining the CCGA will give the Town a united voice in Sacramento when issues pertaining to the 
cardroom arise; however, there is no guarantee the CCGA will always be able to convince law 
makers to side with CCGA member interests.      
 
At the March 11 City Council meeting, the City Council directed staff to bring back more 
information regarding the CCGA’s budget, staff, and willingness to amend addendum relating to 
the CCGA Treasurer position, allowing all member agencies the ability for the Treasurer to be 
represented by their agency. 
 
ANALYSIS 

The objective of tonight’s study session is to review, discuss, and provide input on whether the 
Town should consider joining the CCGA JPA.  Attachments A thru C detail the Councils request 
for more information so the item can be considered and discussed further. 
 
Attachment A is a copy of the CCGA’s Financial Statement through February 29, 2020. 
 
Attachment B are copies of the CCGA’s Biographies and Resume’s.   
 
Attachment C is the letter inviting the Town to join the CCGA.  
 
Attachment D is the CCGA JPA Agreement for reference. 
 



   

Staff Report - CCGA JPA Study Session   Page 3 of 4 
April 8, 2020 

During the study session a question was asked allowing all member agencies the ability to have 
the Treasurer position represented in their city.  The response to the question is “yes” and the 
City Attorney along with the CCGA Attorney are working on language for the addendum that 
would be brought forward at a future City Council meeting if directed. 
 
Also, in recent conversations with the CCGA, Mr. Bermudez has indicated that the Attorney 
General’s office has been continuing to work on proposed gaming changes that would negatively 
impact the cardrooms and cities, and believes these proposed changes will be coming forward 
shortly after the covid-19 pandemic.  
  
CCGA JPA Organization 
The CCGA is made up of four (4) paid consultants, an executive director, attorney, treasurer and 
analyst (vacant).  The JPA is not a CalPERS agency and there are no employees.  The purpose of 
the CCGA is to protect member cities interests and to monitor the activities of the California 
Gambling Control Commission, the California Bureau of Gambling Control, and the Department of 
Public Health Office of Problem Gambling.  The CCGA advocates for policies that support and 
protect the cities interests, revenues, and right to govern and opposes policies that are contrary 
to those by educating lawmakers. 
 
The CCGA will be able to advocate for the Town along with other cities on not only current issues 
facing cardrooms but also future challenges such as the introduction of sports wagering.  Tribal 
casinos have introduced sports wagering in the State of California but are advocating to prohibit 
sports wagering in non-tribal casinos/cardrooms.   
 
The CCGA can represent the Town and its member agencies in stakeholder meetings, meetings 
with the Attorney General and Director of the Bureau of Gambling Control, draft legal responses 
(attachment E), as well as testify before commissions and boards in Sacramento advocating for 
our interests. 
 
CCGA Board and Meetings 
The CCGA JPA will meet one time per month in a member city on a rotating basis.  Due to the 
challenges with geography, cities will be able to call in to the meetings.  All meetings will be public 
and are required to be subject to the Brown Act.  The Mayor or a member of the City Council will 
represent the Town on the CCGA Board.  Based on the business items and approved programs 
the CCGA consultants will work with member agency city managers to complete action items from 
the Board.  
 
W ithdrawal from the CCGA  
Member agencies may withdraw from the CCGA at any time with a 30-day written notice.  
However, any withdrawing member shall be obligated to contribute its pro-rata portion of the 
annual contribution and its pro-rata share of the liabilities of the CCGA for the fiscal year in which 
the withdraws become effective. 
 
Annual Cost to be a Member 
The current cost to join the CCGA JPA is $30,000 per fiscal year.  If more member agencies join 
the CCGA, the cost could go down.  As stated before, there are benefits in joining, most 
importantly having one collective voice for multiple cardrooms state-wide; however, that does 



   

Staff Report - CCGA JPA Study Session   Page 4 of 4 
April 8, 2020 

not guarantee the CCGA will always be able to convince law makers to side with CCGA member 
interests.      
 
In speaking with representatives from Lucky Chances, they indicated that they would support the 
Town’s participation in the JPA. 
 
Staff is seeking answers to the following questions. 
 
• Should staff bring the addendum adding the Town of Colma to the CCGA JPA at a future City 

Council meeting? 
• Should staff bring back more information, if so, what specifically? 
• Would Council like to wait and see how many other cities join the CCGA before staff brings 

the addendum before City Council? 
 
The Executive Director, Rudy Bermudez of the CCGA will be available via zoom at the April 8 
Council meeting so he will be able to answer any questions you may have. 
 
Council Adopted Values 
 
The staff report is consistent with the Council value of responsibility by taking comments, input 
and feedback from the public and staff to review and consider the pros and cons to joining the 
CCGA JPA.   

 
CONCLUSION 

The City Council is encouraged to ask questions about the possibility of the Town joining the 
CCGA JPA during the study session presentation. 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. CCGA Financial Statement through February 29, 2020 
B. CCGA Staff Biographies and Resume’s  
C. Letter inviting the Town to join the CCGA  
D. CCGA JPA Agreement 
 
 

 
 
 

 



Adopted Collected
Budgeted Year-to-Date

FY 2019-20 02/29/20

Revenues:

Annual Funding 2019-20 - City of Gardena $30,000 $30,000.00
Annual Funding 2019-20 - City of Inglewood $30,000 $30,000.00

Total Revenues $60,000 $60,000.00

Adopted Year-to-Date
Expenses: Budgeted 02/29/20

Board of Director's Stipend $600.00
Excutive Director $28,000.00
Operational Expenses $3,174.24
Legal Services $14,452.49
Financial Services $1,575.00

Total Expenses $47,801.73

Net Income Fiscal Year 2019-2020 $12,198.27

California Cities Gaming Authority JPA
Income Statement

For the Period of 11/19/2019 Thru 02/29/2020

Attachment A



Payee Amount

Board Members - Stipends $150.00 November 13, 2019 Board Meeting
$150.00 December 18, 2019 Board Meeting
$150.00 January 15, 2020 Board Meeting
$150.00 February 19, 2020 Board Meeting

Total $600.00

Rudy Bermudez $4,000.00 November 2019 Consulting Services
Rudy Bermudez $8,000.00 December 2019 Consulting Services

$643.80 December 2019 Reimburseable Expenses
Rudy Bermudez $8,000.00 January 2020 Consulting Services

$881.65 January 2020 Reimburseable Expenses
Rudy Bermudez $8,000.00 February 2020 Consulting Services

$1,628.79 February 2020 Reimburseable Expenses
Total $31,154.24

Jimmy Gutierrez $4,735.00 November 2019 Legal Services
Jimmy Gutierrez $7,317.49 December 2019 Legal Services
Jimmy Gutierrez $2,400.00 January 2020 Legal Services

$14,452.49

City of Gardena $1,050.00 Financial Services (1/12/2020 Thru 2/7/2020)
City of Gardena $525.00 Financial Services (2/9/2020 Thru 2/22/2020)

Total $1,575.00

Chase Bank $20.00 New Check Order
Total $20.00

Total Warrant Register $47,801.73

California Cities Gaming Authority
Warrant Register

For the Month of February 2020

Purpose



Attachment B





























January 27, 2020 

Brian Dossey, City Manager 
City of Colma 
1198 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014 

Dear City Manager Dossey: 

I am writing to invite your city, the City of Colma, to join the California Cities Gaming Authority, a 
joint powers authority.  

The California Cities Gaming Authority (CCGA) is chartered as a Joint Powers Authority under 
California State law, under the authorization granted in California Government Code, Section 
6500. The CCGA was formed to protect the interests of the 66 cities state-wide with licensed 
medium and small card rooms, its residents, local businesses, and their employees. 

The CCGA is dedicated to protecting and promoting the interests and economic concerns of 
its member cities. The employment, development opportunities, and revenue generated by 
licensed card room in our cities help fund city services such as police and fire services, park 
maintenance, recreation, senior and youth services, and road repair. The jobs created in our cities 
by our licensed card rooms provide a stable source of high-quality living wage employment 
opportunities for our residents. 

To protect our member cities, the CCGA monitors the activities of the State Legislature and State 
Regulatory Agencies, such as the California Gambling Control Commission, the California Bureau 
of Gambling Control, and the California Department of Public Health Office of Problem Gambling; 
and it engages in public policy issues. The CCGA advocates for policies that support and protect 
the cities’ interests, revenues, and right to govern and opposes policies that are contrary to those 
by educating policymakers.  

In 2019, our Chair, Executive Director, and General Counsel participated on behalf of cities with 
card rooms in the following activities: 

• Testified at all seven of the California Attorney General’s Bureau of Gambling Control
workshops regarding regulations on the rotation of the player-dealer position and the
withdrawal of Blackjack game approvals.

• Testified at the California Gambling Control Commission workshop on the proposed
changes to the advertising regulations for card rooms.

Attachment C



California Cities Gaming Authority 
to 

City Manager Brian Dossey 
City of Colma 

Page 2 
 

 

• Testified at the Senate Governmental Organization Committee Informational Hearing on 
“Gambling in California” in the State Capitol.  
 

• Testified during the Senate Budget Subcommittee #5 and Assembly Budget Subcommittee 
#5 Hearings on the California Attorney General’s Department of Justice, Bureau of 
Gambling Control budget. 
 

• Participated as a panel member during the Joint Legislative Oversight Hearing of the 
Legislative Audit Committee, Senate Governmental Organization Committee and Assembly 
Governmental Organization Committee on the Bureau of Gambling Control and California 
Gambling Control Commission: their Licensing Processes are Inefficient and Foster Unequal 
Treatment of Applicants (Report Number 2018–132) at the State Capitol.  
 

• Met with California Attorney General Xavier Becerra, and a number of times with California 
Bureau of Gambling Control, Director Stephanie Shimazu.  
 

• Met with Assembly and Senate Legislative leadership and key Committee Members and 
their staffs, educating them on the issues and the effects on cities and the residents they 
serve. 
 

• Met with Governor Gavin Newsom’s Tribal Negotiations Advisor Anna Naimark on the tribal 
impact on cities. 
 

• Participated in numerous Card Room Stakeholder meetings in Sacramento. 
 
With the threat of the California Attorney General and the Director of the California Bureau of 
Gambling Control to revoke licensed games played in our city's licensed card rooms, the 2019 
legislative year was a challenging one. For a majority of cities throughout the state with licensed 
card rooms, the withdrawal of game approvals for California Games, like blackjack, would be a 
devastating financial blow to city revenues, the local community non-profits that are supported by 
card room donations, and the card room itself. Just the threat of withdrawing game approvals for 
California Games stifled numerous cities’ plans for economic development surrounding card rooms 
and it prevented the sale of some card rooms also negatively affecting cities abilities to generate 
future revenue.  
 
The 2020 legislative year is anticipated to be even more challenging. While the threat of revoking 
licensed games is still looming, there is an effort by the tribes to enact sports wagering in the 
State of California. The current tribal sports wagering effort would prohibit cities of any 
opportunity to generate revenue from sports wagering and bar their licensed card room from 
participating in sports wagering. These new revenues for our cities could be used to fund the vital 
city services our residents use and need. 
 
The Director of the Bureau of Gambling Control is also attempting to enact new draconian 
regulations on the rotation of the player-dealer position. These new regulations would make card 
games unplayable, forcing patrons to abandon card rooms in our cities. This would ultimately 



California Cities Gaming Authority 
to 

City Manager Brian Dossey 
City of Colma 

Page 3 
 

 

force card rooms out of business and deprive our cities of critical revenue. Also being raised this 
year will be an effort to increase local control, our city's individual rights to enact ordinances 
overseeing the operation of our local licensed card rooms; a policy we must protect and enhance. 
We must also remain vigilant in monitoring any effort to move internet poker and e-sports forward, 
as well as monitor any legislation and/or policies that would affect our cities' revenue and jobs 
derived from gaming in our cities.  
 
The viability of our cities is dependent upon all of our card room cities working together as one. 
Please consider joining the California Cities Gaming Authority. The CCGA meets monthly and 
the annual dues are $30,000 a year. Our Executive Director, Rudy Bermudez, will be contacting 
you soon.   
 
If I can answer any questions please do not hesitate to contact me at (310) 217-9503 or by email 
at tcerda@cityofgardena.org or please contact Rudy Bermudez at (562) 305-5556 and by email 
at rudybermudez@msn.com.  Thank you. 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
 
Tasha Cerda  
Chair, California Cities Gaming Authority and Mayor of the City of Gardena 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment D































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  


	4.08.20 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Minutes - Regular Meeting 03.11.20
	2. Minutes - Special Meeting 03.18.20
	3. Report of Checks Paid - March 2020
	4. Recreation Service Department Quarterly Review - Jan - March 2020
	A. January - March 2020 Quarterly Review Attachment

	5. Police Dispatch Services Contract with SSF Police Department
	A. Resolution
	B. Agreement

	6. RMRA Project List
	A. Resoltuion - RMRA 2020
	B. Project List

	7. Authorization of Acceptance of Real Property
	A. Resolution

	8. Donation to SMC Strong Fund
	A. Resolution SMCStrong
	B. SMC Strong FAQ

	9. Mission Road Improvement Project – Bid Package Approval
	A. Resolution
	B. Plans

	10. CCGA Study Session
	A. 3-18-2020 CCGA Financial Statement through 2-29-2020
	B. CCGA Staff Bios and Resumes
	C. 1-27-2020 CCGA Letter to Colma CM Dossey-Letter of Invitation
	D. 2019 Agreement Approving Creation of CCGA November 2019


